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ISLE OF MAN BANK LIMITED
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The direclors of Isle of Man Bank Limited (“the Company") present their report, together with the audited financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2016. The financial statements are prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board and
interpretations issued by the International Financial Reporting Interpretalions Committee of the |IASB (together IFRS).

ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW
Principal activities
The main activity of the Company is to provide a wide range of banking and other financial services.

The direclors do not anlicipate any material change in either the type or level of activities of the Company.,

Business review

The Company'’s financial performance is presented in the Income Statement on page 6.
The operating profit before tax for the year was £9,444k (2015: £13,436k),

Other matters

The Company’s principal business activilies are banking services including the taking of deposits and lending in the Isle
of Man. Deposits not used to provide third party lending are placed with fellow subsidiaries of The Royal Bank of Scotland
Group plc (“RBS"). The financial position of these, and hence ultimate recoverability of these placements, is a key
exposure of the Company.

Accounting policies

The reported results of the Company are sensitive to the accounting policies, assumptions and estimates that underlie the
preparation of its financial statements. Details of the Company’s critical accounting policies and key sources of estimation
uncertainty are included within the Accounting policies.

Risk management

The prevailing market and economic conditions pose risks for the Company. These include the level of defaults from
cuslomers on outstanding advances as well as the degree of uncertainty in the valuation of other financial assets and
liabilities. The financial position of the Company, its cash flows, liquidity position, and borrowing facilities are set out in the
financial statements. In addition notes 7 and 16 to the financial stalements include the Company's objectives, policies and
processes for managing its capital; its financial risk management objectives; details of its financial instruments and
hedging activilies and its exposures to credit and liquidity risks.

The Board has delegaled its authority for day to day risk management to the executive management sitting on
committees as detailed in note 16. The Board approves any changes in inter-bank lending lines and in limits governing
currency and inlerest rate exposures. The Board policy is nol to enter into derivative transactions for trading purposes, but
to undertake such contracts to hedge or reduce the volalility in interest income and foreign exchange. The Company's
actual derivative transactions are outlined in nole 11 to these financial statements. Further details of the Company's risk
management policies are highlighted in note 16 to the financial statements.

Outlook

The directors are satisfied with the financial position of the Company and its subsidiaries and believe that they are
appropriately placed to manage their business risks successfully.

The purpose of this report is to provide information to the members of the Company and it is addressed to them as such.
Forward looking statements by their nature involve inherent risks and uncertainties since future events, circumsiances
and other factors can cause results and developments to differ materially from the plans, objeclives, expectations and
intentions expressed in such statements.



ISLE OF MAN BANK LIMITED
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

GOING CONCERN

The Company’s business activities, together with the factors likely to affect its future development, performance and
position, including potential risks and uncertainties, are set out in the Business Review above. The financial position of
the Company, its cash flows, liquidity position and borrowing facililies are set out in the financial statements. In addition,
notes 7 and 16 to the financial statements include the Company's objectives, policies and processes for managing its
capilal; its financial risk management objectives; details of its financial instruments and hedging activities; and its
exposuras to credit risk and liquidity risk.

The direclors have a reasonable expectation that the Company has adequate resources 1o conlinue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future. Accordingly they continue to adopt the going concem basis in preparing the Report
of the Diractors and the financial stalements.

DIVIDENDS

An interim dividend of £10,000k was approved on 24 May 2016. A further dividend of £6,000k was approved on 11
November 2016, both of which were subsequently paid (2015: £20,000k).

DIRECTORS AND SECRETARY

The present directors and secretary, who have served throughout the year, are listed on page 1. From 1 January 2016 to
dale the following changes have taken place:

Appointed Resigned
Directors
Kirsten Land 11 August 2016 -
William Catlo Shimmins - 22 July 2016
STAFF

The directors wish to thank all the management and staff for the contribution made by them towards achieving these
results.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

During the year Deloitte LLP resigned as auditors and Emst & Young LLC were appointed in their place by the Directors
at the board meeting held on 7 September 2016. They were re-appointed as auditor at the Annual General Meeting held
on 26 September 2016 in accordance with section 12(2) of the Companies Act 1982.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

There have been no significant events between the year end and the date of approval of the financial statements which
would require a change or additional disclosure in the financial statements.

By order of the Board:
Stephen John Camm Lynn Ann Cleary
Chairman Director



ISLE OF MAN BANK LIMITED
STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the company and of the profit or loss of the company for that year. The directors have elected lo
prepare the financial slatements in accordance with applicable law and Intemational Financial Reporting Standards as
issued by the Intemational Accounting Standards Board. In preparing these financial statements, the directors are
required lo:-

» select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
e make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

* state whether applicable International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial
statements; and

» prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
company will continue in business.

The direclors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time
the financial position of the company and to enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the
Companies Acts 1931 to 2004. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for
taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other iregularities.

By order of the Board:
phen John Camm Lynn Ann Cleary
Chairman Director



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF ISLE OF MAN BANK LIMITED

We have audited the financial statements of Isle of Man Bank Limited for the year ended 31 December 2016 which
comprise the Income Statement, the Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Balance Sheet, the Stalement of Changes
in Equity, the Cash Flow Statement, the accounting policies and the related notes 1 to 22. The financial reporting
framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and Intermational Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) as issued by the Intemational Accounting Standards Board.

This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, pursuant to Section 15 of the Companies Act 1982. Our
audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those matlers we are required to state
to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or
assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company's members as a body for our audit work, for
this report or for the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor

As explained more fully in the Statement of Direclors' Responsibilities set out on page 4, the directors are responsible for
the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. Our responsibility is
to audit and express an opinion on the financial stalements in accordance with applicable law and International Standards
on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards
for Auditors.

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves oblaining evidence abaut the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give
reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or
error. This includes an assessment of: whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Company's circumstances
and have been consislently applied and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by the directors; and the overall presentation of the financial statements. In addition, we read all the financial and
non-financial information in the annual report to identify material inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and
to identify any information that is apparently materially incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge
acquired by us in the course of performing the audit. If we become aware of any apparent material misstatements or
inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report.

Opinion on financial statements

In our opinion the financial statements:

* give a lrue and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at 31 December 2016 and of its profit for the
year then ended;

» have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRS as issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board; and

» have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Acts 1931 to 2004.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matiers where the Companies Acts 1931 to 2004 requires us to
report to you if, in our opinion:

» adequate accounting records have not been kept, or retums adequate for our audit have not been received from
branches not visited by us; or
the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns: or
certain disclosures of directors' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

* we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

ﬁm"\ o g <

Emst & Young LLC
Chartered Accountants

Isle of Ma
Date 9 &nul. WY



ISLE OF MAN BANK LIMITED
INCOME STATEMENT for the year ended 31 December 2016

2016 2015
Continuing operations Noles £'000 £000
Interest receivable 26,030 29,161
Inlerest payable {9,174} {9.627)
Net interest income 1 16,856 19,534
Fees and commission receivable 4,818 6,297
Other operating income 2 324 614
Non-interest income 5,142 6.911
Total income 21,908 26,445
Operating expenses 3 {12,382) {12,858)
Operating profit before impairment losses 9,616 13,587
Impairment losses 8 {172) {151}
Operating profit before tax 9,444 13,436
Tax charge 5 (965) {1.246)
Profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the parent 8,479 12,190

The accompanying accounting policies and notes form an integral part of these financial statements.



ISLE OF MAN BANK LIMITED
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME for the year ended 31 December 2016

2016 2015

Notes £'000 £'000
Profit for the year 8,479 12,190
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit
or loss:
Actuarial (losses)/gains on defined pension schemes 4 {1,445) 2,922
Deferred taxation on acluariai movements on defined benefit
pension schemes 13 178 (278)
Other comprehensive (losses)/gains for the year after
tax (1,266) 2,644
Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to
equity holders of the parent 7,213 14,834

The accompanying accounting policies and notes form an integral part of these financial statements.



ISLE OF MAN BANK LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET as af 27 December 2016

2016 2015

Notes £'000 £000
Assets
Cash and balances at central banks 7 17,625 17,674
Loans and advances to banks 7 849,112 793,111
Loans and advances to customers 7 583,574 576,535
Derivatives 7.11 12,153 9,598
Property, plant and equipment 7,10 3,123 3,540
Prepaymentls, accrued income and other assets 7 4,328 2,161
Retirement benefit assets 4,7 9,140 6,427
Total assets 1,479,055 1,409,046
Liabilities
Deposits by banks 7 36,600 51,846
Customer accounts 7 1,340,675 1,254,688
Derivatives 7.1 18,784 14,069
Accruals, deferred income and other liabilities 712 8,118 4,325
Current tax liabilities 7 519 1,234
Deferred tax liabilities 7,13 914 652
Total liabilities 1,405,610 1,326,814
Equity
Shareholders’ equity:
Called up share capital 14 7,501 7,501
Reserves 65,944 74,731
Total equity 7 73,445 82,232
Total liabilities and equity 1,479,055 1,409,046

The accompanying accounting policies and notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on g le_ﬂ‘\ 10”and signed on its behalf by:

Stephen John Camm
Chairman

b

Lynn Ann Cleary



ISLE OF MAN BANK LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY for the year ended 31 December 2016

2016 2015

Notes £'000 £'000
Called up share capital
At 1 January and 31 December 7,501 7.501
Retained earnings
Al 1 January 74,731 79,897
Actuarial gains/(losses) recognised in defined
benefit schemes 4 {1,445) 2,922
Deferred taxation on actuarial movements
recognised in defined benefit schemes 13 179 (278)
Dividends paid 6 {16,000) (20,000)
Profit for the year 8,479 12,190
At 31 December 65,944 74,731
Shareholders’ equity at 31 December 73,445 82,232

The accompanying accounting policies and notes form an integral part of these financial statements.



ISLE OF MAN BANK LIMITED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT for the year ended 31 December 2016

2016 2015

Notes £'000 £000
Operating activities
Operating profit for the year before tax 18 9,444 13,436
Adjustments for:
Pension charge for defined benefit schemes 4 514 414
Cash contribution to defined benefit pension schemes 4 (4,672) (527)
(Gain on sale of assets 2 {324) -
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 10 64 72
Loan impairment pravisions net of recoveries (3) 35
Qther non-cash items (143} {6)
Net cash inflows from trading activities 4,880 13,424
Changes in operaling assets and liabilities 18 12,154 7,232
Net cash flows from operating activities before tax 17,034 20,656
Tax paid 18 {1,239) {421)
Net cash flows from operating activities 15,795 20,235
Investing activities
Sale of property, plant & eguipment 682 -
Net cash flows from financing activities 682 -
Financing activities
Dividends paid 6 {16,000) {20,000}
Net cash flows used in financing activities {16,000) {20,000)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 83 S
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 560 240
Cash and cash equivalents 1 January 18,795 18,555
Cash and cash equivalents 31 December 19 18,355 18,795

The accompanying accounting policies and notes form an integral part of these financial statements,
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ISLE OF MAN BANK LIMITED
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
1. Preparation and presentation of financial statements

The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis and in accordance with IFRS issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB), and interpretations issued by the Intemational Financial Reporting Interpretations
Committee of the |ASB (together IFRS).

The financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis except that the following assets and liabilities are stated
at their fair value: financial assets and financial liabilities designaled at fair value through profit or loss and derivative
financial instruments. Recognised financial assets and financial liabilities in fair value hedges are adjusted for changes in
fair value in respect of the risk that is hedged.

The Company is incorporated and registered in the Isle of Man.
The Company adopted a number of new and revised IFRS effeclive 1 January 2016:

Annual Improvements to IFRS 2012-2014 cycle were issued in September 2014 making a number of minor amendments
to IFRS.

The implementation of these requirements has not had a material effect on the Company's financial statements.
2. Consolidated financial statements

The financial statements contain information about the Company as an individual company and do not contain
consolidaled financial information as the parent of a group. Under the provisions of section 4 of the Companies Act 1982
the Company has not prepared consolidaled financial statements as in the directors’ opinion it would be of no real value
to the members of the Company due to the insignificant amounts involved. Furthermore the Company is exempt under
IFRS 10 ‘Consolidated Financial Statements' from the requirement to prepare consolidated financial statements as the
Company and its subsidiaries are included by full consolidation in the IFRS consolidated financial statements of its
ultimate holding company, The Royal Bank of Scolland Group plc, a company registered in Scotland.

3. Revenue recognition

Interest income on financial assets that are classified as loans and receivables and interest expense on financial liabilities
other than those at fair value through profit or loss is determined using the effective interest method. The effective interest
method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability (or group of financial assets
or liabilities) and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the expected life of the asset or liability. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exaclly discounts estimated future cash flows to the instrument's initial carrying
amount. Calculation of the effective interest rate takes into account fees payable or receivable, that are an integral part of
the instrument's yield, premiums or discounts on acquisition or issue, eary redemption fees and transaction costs. Al
contractual terms of a financial instrument are considered when estimating future cash flows.

Financial assets and financial liabilities designated as fair value through profit or loss are recorded at fair value. Changes
in fair value are recognised in the income statement.

Fees in respect of services are recognised as the right to consideration accrues through the provision of the service to the
customer. The arrangements are generally contractual and the cost of providing the service is incurred as the service is
rendered. The price is usually fixed and always determinable. The application of this policy to significant fee types is
outlined below.

Payment services: This comprises income received for payment services including cheques cashed, direct debits,
Clearing House Automated Paymenls (the UK electronic settlement system) and BACS payments (the automated
clearing house that processes direct debils and direct credits). These are generally charged on a per transaction basis.
The income is eamed when the payment or transaction occurs. Charges for payment services are usually debited to the
customer’s account, monthly or quarterly in arrears. Income is accrued at year end for services provided but not charged.

4. Pensions and other post-retirement benefits
The Company provides post-retirement benefits in the form of pensions to eligible employees.
Contributions to defined contribution pension schemes are recognised in the income staternent when payable.

For defined benefit schemes, the defined benefit obligation is measured on an actuarial basis using the projected credit
unit method and discounted at a rate determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on high
quality corporale bonds of equivalent term and currency to the scheme liabilities. Scheme assets are measured at their
fair value. The difference between scheme assets and scheme liabilities — the net defined benefit asset or liability — is
recognised in the balance sheet with a charge to the statement of other comprehensive income. A defined benefil asset is
limited to the present value of any economic benefits available to the Company in the form of refunds from the plan or
reduced contributions to it.

11



ISLE OF MAN BANK LIMITED

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

4. Pensions and other post-retirement benefits (continued)

The charge to profit or loss for pension costs {recorded in operating expenses) comprises:

the current service cost

interest, computed at the rate used to discount scheme liabilities, on the net defined benefit liability or asset

past service cost resulting from a scheme amendment or curtailment
gains or losses on settlement

A curtailment occurs when the Company significantly reduces the number of employees covered by a plan. A plan
amendment occurs when the Company introduces, or withdraws, a defined benefit plan or changes the benefits payable
under an existing defined benefit plan. Past service cost may be either positive (when benefits are introduced or changed
so that the present value of the net defined benefit obligation increases) or negative (when benefits are withdrawn or
changed so that the present value of the defined benefit obligation decreases). A settlement is a transaction that
eliminates all further obligations for part or all of the benefits.

Acluarial gains and losses (i.e. gains or losses on re-measuring of the net defined benefit asset or liability) are recognised
in full in the year in which they arise in other comprehensive income.

5. Property, plant and equipment

Items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses. Where an item of property, plant and equipment comprises major components having different useful lives, they
are accounled for separately.

Deprecialion is charged to the income stalement on a straight-line basis so as to write off the depreciable amount of
property, plant and equipment (including assets owned and let on operating leases) over their estimated usefu! lives.

The depreciable amount is the cost of an asset less its residual value. Freehold land is not depreciated. The estimated
useful lives are as follows:

Freehold buildings 50 years
Property adaptation costs 10 years
Computer equipment up to 5 years
Other equipment 510 15 years

The residual value and useful life of property, plant and equipment are reviewed al each balance sheet date and updated
for any changes to previous estimates.

6. Impairment of property, plant and equipment

At each reporting dale, the Company assesses whether there is any indication that its property, plant and equipment is
impaired. If any such indication exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset and the impairment
loss if any.

If an asset does not generate cash flows that are independent from those of other assets or groups of assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. A cash-generating unit is the
smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows from
other assets or groups of assets. The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the higher of its fair value
less cost o sell and its value in use. Value in use is the present value of fulure cash flows from the asset or cash-
generating unit discounted at a rate that reflects market interest rates adjusted for risks specific to the asset or cash-
generating unit that have not been taken into account in estimating future cash flows. If the recoverable amount of a
tangible asset is less than its carrying value, an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss and the
carrying value of the asset reduced by the amount of the loss. A reversal of an impairment loss on property, plant and
equipment is recognised as it arises provided the increased carrying value is not greater than it would have been had no
impairment loss been recognised.

7. Foreign currencies
The Company’s financial statements are presented in Sterling, which is the functional currency of the Company.

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Sterfing at the foreign exchange rate ruling at the date of the
transaction. Monetary assels and liabililies denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Sterling at the rates of
exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. Foreign exchange differences arising on translation are recognised in the
income statement except for differences arising on financial liabilities hedging net investments in foreign operations. Non-
monetary items denominaled in foreign currencies that are staled at fair value are translated into Sterling at foreign
exchange rales nuling at the dates the values were determined. Translation differences arising on non-monelary items
measured at fair value are recognised in the income stalement.
12



ISLE OF MAN BANK LIMITED
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
8. Leases

As lessor

Contracls with customers to lease assets are classified as finance leases if they transier substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to the customer; all other contracts with customers to lease assets are classified as
operating leases.

Finance lease receivables are included in the balance sheet, within Loans and advances to customers, at the amount of
the net investment in the lease being the minimum lease payments and any unguaranieed residual value discounted at
the interest rate implicit in the lease. Finance lease income is allocated 1o accounting periods so as to give a constant
periodic rale of retum before tax on the net investment and included in Interest receivable. Unguaranteed residual values
are subject to regular review; if there is a reduction in their value, income allocation is revised and any reduction in
respect of amounts accrued is recognised immediately,

As lessee
Operating lease rental expense is included in Administration costs and recognised as an expense on a straight-ine basis
over the term of the relevant lease.

9. Provisions and contingent liabilities

The Company recognises a provision for a present obligation resulting from a past event when it is more likely than not
that it will be required to transfer economic benefits to settle the obligation and the amount of the obligation can be
estimated reliably.

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations arising from past events, whose existence will be confirmed only by
uncertain future evenls, or present obligations arising from past events thal are not recognised because either an outflow
of economic benefils is not probable or the amount of the obligation cannot be reliably measured. Contingent liabilities are
not recognised but information about them is disclosed unless the possibility of any outflow of economic benefits in
settlement is remote.

10. Tax

Income tax expense or income, comprising cument tax and deferred tax, is recorded in the income statement except
income tax on items recognised outside profit or loss which is credited or charged to other comprehensive income or to
equity as appropriate.

Current tax is income tax payable or recoverable in respect of the taxable profit or loss for the year arising in profit or loss,
other comprehensive income or equity. Provision is made for current tax at rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date, taking into account relief for overseas tax where appropriate.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable in respect of temporary differences between the carrying
amount of an asset or liability for accounting purposes and its carrying amount for tax purposes. Deferred 1ax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that they will be recovered. Deferred tax is calculated using tax rates expected to apply in the periods when
the assets will be realised or the liabilities settled, based on tax rates and laws enacted, or substantively enacted, at the
balance sheet date.

11. Financial assets

On initial recognition financial assets are classified inlo designated at fair value through profit or loss; loans and
receivables.

‘Designated at fair value through profit or loss’ - financial assets may be designated at fair value through profit or loss
only if such designation: (a) eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency; or (b) applies
to a group of financial assels, financial liabilities or both, that the Company manages and evaluates on a fair value basis;
or {c} relates to an instrument that contains an embedded derivalive which is not evidently closely related to the host
contract.

Financial assets and liabilities that the Company designates on initial recognition as being al fair value through profit or
loss are recognised at fair value, with transaction costs being recognised in the income statement and are subsequently
measured at fair value. Gains and losses on financial assets that are designated al fair value through profit or loss are
recognised in the income statement as they arise.

Loans and receivables - non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable repaymenis that are not quoted in an
active market are classified as loans and receivables, except those that are classified as available-for-sale or designated
at fair value through profil or loss. Loans and receivables are initially recognised at fair value plus directly related
transaction costs. They are subsequently measured at amorlised cost using the effective interest method (see accounting
policy 3} less any impairment losses.

13



ISLE OF MAN BANK LIMITED
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
11. Financial assets (continued)

Fair value — fair value for a nel open position in a financial asset that is quoted in an active markel is the current bid price
multiplied by the number of units of the instrument held. Fair values for financial assets not quoted in an active market are
determined using appropriate valuation technigues including discounting future cash flows, option pricing models and
other methods that are consistent with accepted economic methodologies for pricing financial assets.

12. Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any objeclive evidence that a financial asset or
group of financial assets classified as loans and receivables is impaired. A financial asset or portfolio of financial assets is
impaired and an impairment loss incurred if there is objective evidence that an event or events since initial recognition of
the asset have adversely affected the amount or timing of future cash flows from the asset.

Financial assels carried at amortised cost - if there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on a financial asset or
group of financial assels classified as loans and receivables has been incurred, the Company measures the amount of
the loss as lhe difference between the carrying amount of the asset or group of assets and the present value of estimated
future cash flows from the asset or group of assels discounted at the effective interast rate of the instrument at initial
recognition.

Impairment losses are assessed individually for financial assets that are individually significant. Future cash flows from
these financial assets are estimated on the basis of the contractual cash flows and historical loss experience for assets
with similar credit risk characteristics. Historical loss experience is adjusted, on the basis of observable data, to reflect
current conditions not affecting the period of historical experience. Impairment losses are recognised in the income
statement and the carrying amount of the financial asset or group of financial asseis reduced by establishing an
allowance for impairment losses. If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss reduces and the reduclion
can be ascribed to an event after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised loss is reversed by adjusting
the allowance. Once an impairment loss has been recognised on a financial asset or group of financial assets, interest
income is recognised on the camrying amount using the rate of interest at which estimated future cash flows were
discounted in measuring impairment.

Impaired loans and receivables are written-off, i.e. the impairment provision is applied in writing down the loan's carrying
value partially or in full, when the Company conciudes that there is no longer any realistic prospect of recovery of part or
all of the loan. For loans that are individually assessed for impairment, the timing of write off is determined on a case-by-
case basis. Such loans are reviewed regularly and write offs will be prompted by bankruptcy, insolvency, renegotiation
and similar events.

Amounts recovered after a loan has been written off are crediled to the loan impairment charge for the period in which
they are received.

Financial assels carried at fair vafue — when a decline in the fair value of a financial asset classified as available-for-sale
has been recognised directly in other comprehensive income and there is objective evidence that i is impaired, the
cumulative loss is reclassified from equity to profit or loss. The loss is measured as the difference between the amortised
cost of the financial asset and its current fair value. Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity instruments are not
reversed through the income statement, but those on available-for-sale debt instruments are reversed, if there is an
increase in fair value that is objectively related to a subsequent event.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as credit facilities, assels that are assessed not to be impaired individually
are, in addition, assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Obijective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of credit
facilities could include the Company's past experience of collecling payments, an increase in the number of delayed
payments in the portiolio past the average credit period, as well as observable changes in natfonal or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

13. Financial liabilities

On initial recognition financial liabilities are classified into designated as at fair value through profit or loss or amortised
cost. Issues of financial liabilities measured at amortised cost are recognised on settlement date; all other regular way
transactions in financial liabilities are recognised on trade date.

‘Designaled at fair value through profit or loss’ - financial liabilities may be designated at fair value through profit or loss
only if such designation (a) eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency; or {b) applies
to a group of financial assets, financial liabilities or both that the Company manages and evaluates on a fair value basis;
or (c) relates to an instrument that contains an embedded derivative which is not evidently closely related to the host
contract.

Financial liabilities that the Company designates on initial recognition as being at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised at fair value, with transaction costs being recognised in the income statement and are subsequently measured
at fair value. Gains and losses on financial liabilities that are designated as at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised in the income statement as they arise.
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ISLE OF MAN BANK LIMITED
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
13. Financial liabilities {continued)

Amortised cost - all other financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method (see
accounting policy 3).

Fair value - fair value for a net open position in a financial liability that is quoted in an aclive markel is the current offer
price multiplied by the number of units of the instrument held or issued. Fair values for financial liabilities not quoted in an
active market are determined using appropriate valuation techniques including discounting future cash flows, option
pricing modeis and other methods that are consistent with accepted economic methodologies for pricing financial
liabilities.

14. Derecognition

A financial asset is derecognised when the contractual right to receive cash flows from the asset has expired or when it
has been transferred and the transfer qualifies for derecognition. A transfer requires that the Company either (a) transfers
the contractual rights to receive the asset's cash flows; or (b) retains the right to the asset's cash flows but assumes a
contractual obligation to pay those cash flows to a third party. After a transfer, the Company assesses the extent to which
it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership of the transferred asset. The asset remains on the balance sheet if
substantially all the risks and rewards have been retained. It is derecognised if substantially all the risks and rewards
have been transferred. If substantially all the risks and rewards have been neither retained nor transferred, the Company
assesses whether or nol it has retained control of the asset. If the Company has retained control of the asset, il continues
lo recognise the asset to the extent of its continuing involvement; if the Company has not retained control of the asset, it
is derecognised.

A financial liability is removed from the balance sheet when the obligation is discharged, or cancelled, or expires.
15. Netting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amounts presented in the balance sheet when, and only
when, the Company has a legally enforceable righl to set off the recognised amounts and it intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The Company is party to a number of
arrangements, including master netting agreements, that give it the right to offset financial assets and financial liabilities
but where it does not intend to settle the amounts net or simultaneously and therefore the assets and liabilities concerned
are presented gross.

16. Derivatives and hedging

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised, and subsequently measured, at fair value. Derivative fair values
are determined from quoted prices in active markels where available. Where there is no active market for an instrument,
fair value is derived from prices for the derivative's components using appropriate pricing or valuation models.

A derivative embedded in a contract is accounted for as a stand-alone derivative if its economic characteristics are not
closely related to the economic characterislics of the host contract; unless the entire contract is measured at fair value
through the income statement.

Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives that are not the hedging instrument in a qualifying
hedge are recognised as they arise in the income statement.

The Company has entered into fair value hedge relationships which account for changes in the fair value of a recognised
asset or liability or firm commitment.

Hedge relationships are formally documented at inception. The documentation includes identification of the hedged item
and the hedging instrument, details the risk that is being hedged and the way in which effectiveness will be assessed at
inception and during the period of the hedge. If the hedge is not highly effective in offsetling changes in fair values
attributable 1o the hedged risk, consistent with the documented risk management strategy, hedge accounting is
discontinued. Hedge accounting is also discontinued if the Company revokes the designation of a hedge retationship.

Fair value hedge — in a fair value hedge, the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognised in the income
stalement. The gain or loss on the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk is recognised in the income statement and,
where the hedged item is measured at amortised cost, adjusts the carrying amount of the hedged item. Hedge accounting
is discontinued if the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting; or if the hedging instrument expires or is
sold, terminated or exercised; or if hedge designation is revoked. If the hedged item is one for which the affective interest
rate method is used, any cumulative adjustment is amortised to the income statement over the life of the hedged item
using a recalculated effective interest rate.
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ISLE OF MAN BANK LIMITED
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
17. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and demand deposits with banks together with shori-term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and subject lo insignificant risk of change in value.

18. Investment in subsidiary

The Company's investment in its subsidiary is stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.
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ISLE OF MAN BANK LIMITED
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Critical accounting policies and key sources of estimation uncertainty

The reported resuits of the Company are sensilive to the accounting policies, assumptions and estimates that underlie the
preparation of its financial statements. IFRS require the directors, in preparing the Company's financial statements, to
select suitable accounting policies, apply them consistently and make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent. In the absence of an applicable standard of interpretation, IAS 8 ‘Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Eslimates and Errors’ requires management to develop and apply an accounting policy that results in relevant and reliable
information in the light of the requirements and guidance in IFRS dealing with similar and related issues and the IASB's
‘Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting'.

The judgements and assumptions involved in the Company's accounting policies that are considered by the Board of
Directors to be the most important to the portrayal of its financial condition are discussed below. The use of estimates,
assumptions or models that differ from those adopted by the Company would affect its reported results.

Loan impairment provisions

The Company provides for losses existing in its lending book so as to state ils loan portfolio at its expected ultimate net
recoverable value.

Provisions against large exposures are established individually whilst those for smaller balances are established
collectively.

Individual assessment of loans and advances comprises a review of the financial condition of the borrower and any
guarantor and takes into account the customer's debt capacity and financial flexibility; the level and quality of earnings: the
amount and sources of cash flows; the industry in which the customer operates; and the realisable value of any security
held. The most significant estimates that affect the quantum of any specific provision are the amounts and timing of
receipts from the borrower or recoveries from any security held.

All provisions are quantified on an effeclive interest rale basis so that the loan will yield a consistent return over its
expected remaining life. The discounting required in the calculation of a provision is included in the initial charge; the
discount unwinds through interest receivable in accordance with IAS 39 ‘Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement'.

Latent loss provisions are held against estimated impairment losses in the performing portfolio that have yet to be identified
as at the balance sheet dale. To assess the latent loss within its portfolios, the Company has developed methodologies to
estimate the time that an asset can remain impaired within the performing portfolio before it is identified and reporied as
such, past loss experience, credit scores and defaults based on portfolio trends. The most significant faclors in establishing
these provisions are the expecled loss rates and the related average life.

At 31 December 2016, gross impaired loans and advances to customers totalled £2,314k (2015: £2,512k) and customer
loan impairment provisions amounted to £728k (2015: £774k). The fair value of security held against the loans and
advances lo customers above amounted to £1,377k (2015: £1,836k).

Evaluating estimates of provisions involves significant judgement, as receipts will depend on the future performance of the
borrower and the value of security, bolh of which will be affected by future economic conditions. Additionally, the security
may not be readily marketable.

The future credit quality of the Company's lending book is subject to uncertainties that could cause actual credit losses to
differ materially from reported loan loss provisions. These uncertainties include the economic environment, notably interest
rates and their effect on customer spending, the unemployment level, payment behaviour and bankruptcy trends and
changes in the Company's portfolios.

Pensions

The Company operates two pension schemes:; The Isle of Man Pension Fund and The Isle of Man Bank Widows' and
Orphans’ Fund. The assets of the defined benefit schemes are measured at their fair value at the balance sheet date.
Scheme liabilittes are measured using the projected unit credit method, which takes account of projected eamings
increases, using actuarial assumptions that give the best estimate of the future cash flows that will arise under the scheme
liabilities. These cash flows are discounted at the interest rate applicable to high-quality corporate bonds of the same
currency and term as the liabilities. Any surplus or deficit of scheme assets over liabilities is recognised on the balance
sheet as an asset (surplus) or liability (deficit).

In determining the value of scheme liabilities, financial and demographic assumptions are made including price inflation,
pension increase, earnings growth and the longevity of scheme members. A range of assumptions could be adopted in
valuing the schemes’ liabilities. Different assumptions could significantly alter the amount of the surplus or deficit
recognised on the balance sheet and the pension cost charged to the income statement. The assumptions adopted for the
Company's pension schemes are set out in note 4 to the financial statements, together with sensitivities of the balance
sheet and income statement to changes in those assumptions.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Critical accounting policies and key sources of estimation uncertainty {continued)

Pensions (conlinued)

A pension asset of £9,140k was recognised on the balance sheet at 31 December 2016 (2015: £6,427k).
Provisions for liabilities

As set out in Note 12, at 31 December 2016 the Company recognised provisions for liabilities totalling £1,270k (2015:
£1,255k}. Provisions are liabilities of unceriain timing or amount, and are racognised when there is a present obligation as
a result of a past event, the outflow of economic benefit is probable and the outflow can be estimated reliably. Judgement
is involved in determining whether an obligation exists, and in estimating the probability, timing and amount of any outflows.
Where the Company can look to another party such as an insurer to pay some or all of the expenditure required to settle a
provision, any reimbursement is recognised when, and only when, it is virtually certain that it will be received.

Fair value

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participation at the measurement date. Fair values are determined by reference to observable market prices where
available and reliable. Where representative market prices for an instrument are not available or are unreliable because of
poor liquidity, the fair value is derived from prices for its components using appropriate pricing or valuation models that are
based on independently sourced market parameters, including interest rate yield curves, option volatilities and currency
rates.

Financial assets carried at fair value include advances to banks, asset backed and corporate debt obligations, corporate
equity shares and derivatives. Financial liabilities carried at fair value include deposits and derivatives. Fair value for a
substantial proportion of these instruments is based on observable market prices or derived from observable market
parameters. Where observable prices are not available, fair value is based on appropriate valuation techniques or
management estimates.

The Company's derivative products include swaps, forwards, futures and options. Exchange traded instruments are valued
using quoted prices. The fair value of over-the-counter instruments is derived from pricing models, which take account of
contract terms, including maturity, as well as quoted market parameters such as interest rates and volatilities. Most of the
Company's pricing models do not entail material subjectivity because the methodologies utilised do not incorporate
significant judgement and the paramelers included in the models can be calibrated to actively quoted market prices. Values
established from pricing models are adjusted for credit risk, liquidity risk and future operational costs.

Accounting developments

International Financial Reporting Standards
A number of IFRS and amendments to IFRS were in issue at 31 December 2016 that would affect the Company from 1
January 2017 or later.

Effective for 2017
In January 2016, the IASB amended IAS 7 'Cash Flow Statements’ to require disclosure of the movements in financing
liabilities. The amendment is effective from1 January 2017.

In January 2016, the IASB amended IAS 12 'Income taxes' to clarify the recognition of deferred tax assets in respect of
unrealised losses. The amendment is effective from 1 January 2017.

Neither of these amendments is expected to have a material effect on the Company's financial statements.

Effective after 2017 -IFRS 9

In July 2014, the IASB published IFRS @ ‘Financial Instruments’ with an effective date of 1 January 2018. IFRS 9 replaces
the current financial instruments standard IAS 39, setting out new accounling requirements in a number of areas. The
Company is continuing its assessment of the standard’s effect on its financial statements.

The principle features of IFRS 9 are as follows:

Recognition and derecognition
The material in IAS 39 setting out the criteria for the recognition and derecognition of financial instruments has been
included unamended in IFRS 9.

Classification and measurement

Financial assets

There are three classifications for financial assets in IFRS 9: fair value through profit or loss; fair value through other
comprehensive income and amortised cost.
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Accounting developments (continued)

Classification and measurement

Financial assets

Financial assets with terms that give rise to interest and principal cash flows only and which are held in a business model
whose objective is to hold financial assets to collect their cash flow are measured at amortised cost.

Financial assets with terms that give rise to interest and principal cash flows only and which are held in a business model
whose objective is achieved by holding financial assets o collect their cash flow and selling them are measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income.

Other financial assets are measured at fair value through profit and loss.

However, at initial recognition, any financial asset may be irrevocably designated as measured at fair value through profit
or loss if such designation eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency. The Company expects that the
measurement basis of the majority of the Company's financial assets will be unchanged on application of IFRS 9.

Financial liabilities

IFRS 9's requirements on the classification and measurement of financial liabilities are largely unchanged from those in
IAS 39. However, there is a change to the treatment of changes in the fair value attributable to own credit risk of financial
liabilities designated as at fair value through profit or loss which are recognised in other comprehensive income and not in
profil or loss as required by |AS 39.

Hedge accounting

Hedge accounting requirements are designed to align accounting more closely to the risk management framework; permit
a greater variely of hedging instruments; and remove or simplify some of the rule-based requirements in 1AS 38. The
basic mechanics of hedge accounting: Fair value, cash flow and net investment hedges are retained. There is an option
in IFRS 9 for an accounting policy choice to continue with the IAS 39 hedge accounting framework. The Company is
actively considering its implementation approach.

Credit impairment

IFRS 9's credit impairment requirements apply to financial assets measured at amortised cost, to those measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income, to lease receivables and to certain loan commitments and financial
guarantee contracts. On initial recognition a loss allowance is established at an amount equal to 12-month expected
credit losses (“ECL"), that is the portion of life-time expected losses resulting from default events that are possible within
the next 12 months.

Where a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition is identified, the loss allowance increases so as to
recognise all expected default events over the expected life of the asset. The Company expects that financial assets
where there is objective evidence of impairment under IAS39 will be credit impaired under IFRS 9, and carry loss
allowances based on all expected default evenls.

The assessment of credit risk and the estimation of ECL are required lo be unbiased and probability-weighted:
Determined by evaluating at the reporting date a range of possible outcomes using reasonable and supportable
information about past avents, current conditions and forecasts of future events and economic conditions, The estimation
of ECL also takes into account the time value of money. Recognition and measurement of credit impairments under IFRS
9 are more forward-looking than under IAS 39.

A single bank-wide programme has been established to implement the necessary changes in the modelling of credit loss
parameters, and the underlying credit management and financial processes; This programme is led jointly by Risk and
Finance. The inclusion of loss allowances on all financial assets will tend to result in an increase in overall impairment
balances when compared with the existing basis of measurement under IAS 39.

Transition

The classification and measurement and impairment requirements are to be applied retrospectively by adjusting the
opening balance sheet at the date of initial application, with no requirement to restate comparative periods. Hedge
accounting is generally applied prospectively from that date.
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Accounting developments (continued)

IFRS 9

Attribute IFRS 9 1AS 39 Regulatory

Default / To determine the risk of a default occurring, Default aligned to loss A default shall be considered to

credit management intends to apply a default events, by classing all | have occurred with regard to a

impairment definition that is consistent with the financial assets for which an | particular financial asset when
Basel/Regulatory definition of default. impaiment event has taken | either or both of the following have

Assels that are defaulted will be shown as
credit impaired. RBS intends to use 90 days
pasl due as a consistent measure for default
across all product classes.

place as nonperforming.
Nonperforming assels are
defined as those that have a
100% probability of default
and an intemnal asset quality
grade of AQ10.

Impaired financial assets are
those for which there is
objective evidence that the
amount or timing of future
cash flows have been
adversely impacled since
initial recognition.

taken place:

- RBS considers that the customer
is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations without recourse by the
insfitution lo actions such as
realising security;

- the customer is past due more
than 90 days.

For retail exposures, the definition
of default may be applied at the
level of an individual credit facility
rather than in relation to the total
obligations of a borrower.

Probability of

PD is the likelihood of default assessed on

PDs are used in the latent

The likelihood that a customer will

default {PD) the prevailing economic conditions at the provision calculation. | fail to make full and timely

reporting date (point in time}, adjusted to repayment of credit obligations
| take into account estimates of future over a one year time harizon.
economic conditions that are likely to impact PD models reflect losses that
the risk of default; it will not equate to a long would arise through-the-cycle; this
fun average. represents a Jong run average
view of default levels.

Significant A framework is being established that Not applicable Not applicable

Increase in incorporates both quantitative and qualitative

credit risk

measures and is aligned to RBS's current
risk management framework. Decisions in
relation to credit deterioration will be
management decisions, subject to approval
by govemning bodies such as the RBS
Provisions Commitiee.

| The staging assessment requires a definition
| of when a significant increase in credit risk

has occurred; this moves the loss calculation
for financial assets from a 12 month horizon
to a lifelime horizon. Management propose
to establish an approach that is primarily
informed by the increase in lifetime
probability of default, with additional
qualitative measures to account for assels
where PD does not move, but a high risk
factor is determined, these include the Risk
of Credit Loss framework and binary triggers
(examples includes the use of payday
lending, forbearance and 30 days past due).

In most cases, management expect an assel
that has demonstrated a doubling of its
lifetime probability of default would be
considered to have a significant increase in

| credit risk.

IFRS 9 includes an option that permits
assets that are ‘low risk’ 10 be excluded from
this assessment; RBS does not intend to
apply this option,
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Accounting developments (continued)

Attribute IFRS 9 IAS 39 Regulatory
Forward- The evaluation of future cash flows, the risk | Financial asset carrying Follows financial accounting.
locking and of default and impairment loss should take values based upon the
multiple into account expectations of economic expectation of future cash
scenarios changes that are reasonable. flows.
More than one outcome should be
considered {o ensure that the resulting
eslimation of impairment is not biased
towards a particular expectation of
economic growth.
Management have developed the default
modelling capability for IFRS 9 to simulate
multiple economic forecasts as part of the
model outcomes for PD, LGD and exposure.
Loss given LGD is a current assessment of the amount | Regulatory LGD values are An estimate of the amount that will
default (LGD) | that will be recovered in the event of default, | used for calculating collective | not be recovered in the event of
taking account of future conditions, It may and latent provisions, default, plus the cosl of debt
occasionally equate to the regulatory view. collection activities and the delay
in cash recovery. LGD is a
downturn based metric,
representing a prudent view of
recovery in adverse economic
conditions.
Exposure at EAD represents expected balance sheet EAD is assessed as the EAD models provide estimates of
default (EAD) | exposure at default. It differs from the current drawn balance plus credit facility utilisation at the time

regulatory method as follows:
- itinctudes the effect of amartisation;
- it caps exposure at the contractual limit.

future committed drawdowns
that are unavoidable.

of a customer default, recognising
that customers may make further
drawings on unused credit
facilities prior lo default or that
exposures may increase due to
markel movements. EAD cannot
be lower than the reported balance
sheet, but can be reduced by a
legally enforceable netting
agreement.

Date of initial
recognition
{DOIR)

The reference date used to assess a
significant increase in credit risk is as
follows.

Term lending: the date the facility became
available to the customer,

Wholesale revolving products: the date of
the last substantive credit review (typically
annual) or, if later, the date facility became
available to the customer.

Retail Cards: the account opening date or,
if later, the date the card was subject to a
regular 3-year review or the date of any
subsequent limit increases.

Current Accounts/ Overdrafts: the account
opening date or, if later, the date of initial
granting of overdraft facility or of limit
increases.

Not applicable for impairment
but defined as the date when
the entity becomes a party {o
the contractual provisions of
the instrument.

Generally follows financial
accounting.

Modification A modification occurs when the contractual
cash flows of a financial asset are
renegotiated or otherwise modified and the
renegotiation or modification does not result
in derecognition. A modification requires
immediate recognition in the income
statement of any impact on the carrying
value and EIR. Examples of modification
events include forbearance and distressed
restructuring. The financial impact is
recognised in the income statement as an
impairment release/(loss}).

Modification is not separately
defined but accounting
impact arises as an EIR
adjustment on changes that
are not derecognition ar
impairment events.

Not applicable
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Accounting developments {continued)

Assets

ACi1)

IAS 39
FVTPL(2)

FVOCl)

ACH)

IFRS 9
FVTPL(2)

FVOCHh3

Cash and balances at central banks
Non held for trading

Loans and advances to banks

Held for trading

Non held for trading

Loans and advances to customers
Held for trading

Non held for trading

Derivatives

Held for trading

Noles:

{1)  Amoriised cosl

{2)  Fair value through proht and loss

{3)  Fair value other comprehensive income

Effective after 2017 - other standards

IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracls with Customers’ was issued in May 2014. It will replace IAS 11 ‘Construction
Contracts’, IAS 18 ‘Revenue’ and several Interpretations. Contracts are bundled or unbundled into distinct performance

obligations with revenue recognised as the obligations are met. It is effective from 1 January 2018.

IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ was issued in January 2016 to replace IAS 17 ‘Leases’. There are no substantial changes to the
accounting for leases by lessors. For lessees: accounting for finance leases will remain substantially the same; operating
leases will be brought on balance sheet through the recognition of assets representing the contractual rights of use and
liabilities will be recognised for the contractual payments. The effective date is 1 January 2019,

The Company is assessing the effect of adopting these standards on its financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the year ended 31 December 2016

1. Net interest income

2016 2015
£'000 £'000
Interest receivable from group undertakings 5,387 7,531
Interest receivable on loans and advances to customers 20,643 21,630
Interest receivable 26,030 29,161
Interest payable on customer accounts (3,861) (4,168)
Interest payable to group undertakings {5,313) {5.459)
Intarest payable (9,174) (9,627)
Net interest income 16,856 19,534
2. Other operating income
2016 2015
£'000 £'000
Gain on the sale of property, plant and equipment 324 147
Other income - 467
Other operating income 324 614
3. Operating expenses
2016 2015
£'000 £000
Staff costs
Wages, salaries and other staff costs 4,266 4,188
Pension costs:
- defined benefit schemes (see note 4) 514 414
- defined contributions schemes (see note 4) 69 47
4,849 4,647
Other expenses
Premises and equipment 14 84
Administration (1) 7,455 8,055
7,469 8,139
Depreciation
Property, plant and equipment depreciation {see note 10) 64 72
Operating expenses 12,382 12,858
(11 Administrative costs include provisions for possible product redress.
2016 2015
Auditor's remuneration £'000 £'000
Statutory audit work 70 54
Regulatory audit work 24 23
94 77

The average number of persons employed by the Company during the year, excluding temporary staff was 130 (2015:
127).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the year ended 31 December 2016

4. Pension costs

The Company made contributions of £69k to its own defined contribution schemes in 2016 (2015: £47k).

Eligible employees of the Company can participate in membership of RBS operated pension schemes. The principal
defined benefit scheme in the UK was The Royal Bank of Scotland Group Pension Fund (the “Main scheme”). The Main
scheme was closed to new entrants in October 2006 and since then employees have been offered membership of The
Royal Bank of Scotland Retirement Savings Plan, a defined contribution pension scheme. Detailed disclosure of the RBS
pension schemes is available in the RBS Annual Report and Accounts 2016.

The Company operates two defined benefit pension scheme, The Isle of Man Bank Pension Fund {*IOMPF"} and The Isle
of Man Bank Widows' and Orphans’ Fund (*IOMWQ"}, the assets of which are independent of the Company's finances.

The schemes operate under Isle of Man trust law and are managed and administered on behalf of their members in
accordance with the terms of the trust deed, the scheme rules and Isle of Man legislation. There is no pension scheme
funding legislation in the Isle of Man. However, statutory debt rules do apply such that a debt may be due on an employer
if it becomes insolvent; the scheme winds up; or, in the case of a multi-employer scheme, stops participating in the
scheme while the scheme continues.

The trustees of the schemes collectively own the scheme assets which are held separately from the assets of the
Company. The Trustee body comprises three trustees nominated by the Company:- one representative of the pensioners;
one reprasentative of the recognised union in the Isle of Man and one independent trustee. The trustees are responsible
for operating the schemes in line with its formal rules and pensions law. It has a duty to act in the best interests of all
scheme members, including pensioners and those who are no longer employed by the Company but who still have
benefits in the schemes.

The Company's schemes were closed to new entrants in 2006.
Full valuations of the Company's scheme are carried out every 3 years.

Interim valuations of the Company's scheme were prepared to 31 December 2016 by independent actuaries, using the
following assumptions:

Principal actuarial assumptions at 31 Decembar 2016 2015
Discount rate 2.70% 3.90%
Rate of increase in salaries 1.75% 1.75%
Rate of increase in pensions in payment 1.65% 2.00%
Inflation assumption 3.20% 3.00%

Discount rate

The Sterling yield curve is constructed by reference to yields on 'AA’ corporate bonds from which a single discount rate is
derived based on a cash flow profile similar in structure and duration to the pension obligations. Significant judgement is
required when setting the criteria for bonds to be included in the population from which the yield curve is derived. The
critena include issuance size, quality of pricing and the exclusion of outliers. Judgement is also required in determining the
shape of the yield curve at long durations: For the Sterling curve, a constant credit spread relative to gilts is assumed at
long durations.

Major classes of plan assets as a percentage of

total plan assets 2016 2015

Quoted assets

Equities 34% 33%

Index-linked bonds 6% 5%

Government fixed interest bonds 43% 44%

Corporate and other bonds 17% 18%
100% 100%
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the year ended 31 December 2016

4. Pension costs {continued)

Post-retirement mortality assumptions 2016 2015
Longevity at age 60 for current pensioners (years)

Males 28.7 28.6
Females 3.3 31.2
Longevity at age 60 for future pensioners currently aged 40 (years)

Males 30.5 30.4
Females 33.3 33.2

These post-retirement mortality assumptions are derived from standard mortality fables used by the scheme actuary to

value the liabilities for the schemes.

Present value of

Fair value of defined benefit Net pension
plan assets obligations asset
Changes in value of net pension asset £'000 £'000 £000
At 1 January 2016 114,099 (107,672) 6,427
Income statement:
Expected return 4,431 - 4,431
Interest cost (including £345k related to assel ceiling) - (4,118) {4,118)
Current service cost - (827) (B27)
4,43 {4,945) (514)
Statement of comprehensive income:
Actuarial (losses)/gains due lo experience gains 16,444 2,309 18,753
Actuarial gains due to changes in financial
assumptions - (25,726) {25,726)
Actuarial gains due to changes in demographic
assumptions - 7,911 7,911
Movement related to asset ceiling - {2,383) (2,383}
Loss resulting from changes in additional liability due 1o minimum
funding requirements excluding amounts recognised in net
interest (income)/cost - - -
16,444 (17,889) (1,445)
Contributions by employer 4,672 - 4,672
Benefits paid (6,221) 6,221 -
At 31 December 2016 133,425 (124,285) 9,140
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the year ended 31 December 2016

4, Pension costs (continued)

Present value of

Fair valee of defined benefit Net pension
plan assets obligations asset
Changes in value of net pension asset £'000 £'000 £'000
At 1 January 2015 117,672 {114,280) 3,392
Income statement:
Expected return 3,723 - 3,723
Interest cost - (3,272) (3,272
Current service cost - {865) (865
3,723 (4.137) {414)
Statement of comprehensive income:
Actuarial gains due to experience gains {3,408) 280 {3,128
Actuarial losses due to changes in financial
assumptions - 5,704 5,704
Actuarial losses due to changes in demographic
assumptions - 690 690
Losses resulting from changes in additional liability due to
minimum funding requirements excluding amounts recognised in
net interest income (344) - (344
(3.752) 6,674 2,922
Contributions by employer 527 - 527
Benefits paid {4,071) 4,071 -
At 31 December 2015 114,099 (107,672) 6,427

The asset ceiling of £11,586k at 31 December 2016 (2015: £8,858k) has increased the value of the defined benefits
obligations from £112,699k to £124,285k. The movement in the asset ceiling of £2,383k is included in Actuarial gains and
losses due to experience gains/(losses) and £345k is included in the interest cost.

Of the expense for the year, £514k (2015: £414k) has been included in the income statement within staff costs (see note

3).

The Company expects to contribute £4,468k to its defined benefit pension schemes in 2017.

The weighted average duration of the Group's defined benefit obligation is 23 years.

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
History of defined benefit scheme £'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Present value of defined benefit obligations (124,285) (107,672) (104,615) (87,150) {91,696)
Fair value of plan assets 133,425 114,099 116,521 98,932 94,893
Pension IFRIC 14 Adjustment - - {8,514) {7.973) (5,975)
Net surplus/(deficit) 9,140 6,427 3,392 3,809 (2,778)
Experience (losses)/gains on plan liabilities (74) {40) - 7,337 -
Experience gains/(losses) on plan assets 16,444 (3.140) 12,571 {442) 2,913
Actual relurn on pension scheme assets 20,870 1,122 17,122 3,777 7,090
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4. Pension costs {continued)

The table below sets out the sensitivities of the pension cost for the year and the present value of defined benefit
obligations at the balance sheet dates to a change in the principal actuarial assumptions:

{Decrease)/increase in (Decrease)/increase in
pension cost for the year  obligation at 31 December
2016 2015 2016 2015
£'000 £000 £'000 £'000
0.25% increase in the discount rate {252) {241) (5,270} (5,089)
0.25% increase in inflation 173 186 4,798 4,514
0.25% additional rate of increase in pensions in payment 140 144 3,885 3,577
0.25% additional rate of increase in deferred pensions 32 41 884 904
0.25% additional rate of increase in salaries 60 56 599 743
Longevity increase of one year 105 107 2,879 2,287
5. Tax
2016 2015
£'000 £'000
Current tax:
Charge for the year 519 1,234
Under/(over) provision in respect of prior periods 5 {20)
Total current tax 524 1,214
Deferred tax:
Origination and reversal of timing differences 441 32
Tax charge for the year 965 1,246

The actual tax charge differs from the expected tax charge computed by applying the standard rate of income tax of 10%
(2015: 10%) as follows:

2016 2015

£'000 £'000
Operating profit before tax 9,789 13,436
Expected tax charge 979 1,344
Factors affecting the charge for the year:
Disallowable expenses 1 {7)
Profits taxed at 0% (21) (94}
Other 6 3
Actual tax charge for the year 965 1,246
6. Ordinary dividends

2016 2015

£'000 £'000
Interim dividends of 213.3p (2015: 266.6p) per share 16,000 20,000

An interim dividend of £10,000k was approved on 24 May 2016. A further dividend of £6,000k was approved on 11
November 2018, both of which were subsequently paid (2015: £20,000k).
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7. Financial instruments

The following tables analyse the financial assets and financial liabilities in accordance with the categories of financial
instruments in IAS 39. Assets and liabilities outside the scope of IAS 39 are shown within other assels and other liabilities.

Financial
instruments
at fair value Other Other
through  Available- Loans and {amortised assats/
profit or loss for-sale recelvables cost) liahilities Total
2016 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000
Assets
Cash and balances at central banks - - 17,625 - - 17,625
Loans and advances to banks - - 849,112 - - 849,112
Loans and advances {o customers - - 583,574 - - 583,574
Derivatives 12,153 - - - - 12,153
Other assets - - - - 7,451 7,451
Retirement benefit assets - - - - 9,140 9,140
12,153 - 1,450,311 - 16,591 1,479,055
Liabilities
Deposits by banks - - - 36,600 - 36,600
Customer accounts - - - 1,340,675 - 1,340,675
Derivatives 18,784 - - - - 18,784
Other liahbilities - - - - 9,551 9,551
18,784 - - 1,377,275 9,551 1,405,610
Equity 73,445
1,479,055
Financial
instruments
at fair value Other Other
through Available- Leans and (amortised assets/
profit or loss for-sale receivables cost) liabilitles Total
2015 £:000 £000 £000 £'000 £000 £'000
Assets
Cash and balances at central banks - - 17,674 - - 17,674
Loans and advances 1o banks - - 793,111 - - 793,111
Loans and advances to customers - - 576,535 - - 576,535
Derivatives 9,598 - - - - 9,598
Other assets - - - - 5,701 5,701
Retirement benefit assets - - - - 6,427 6,427
9,598 - 1,387,320 - 12,128 1,409,046
Liabilities
Deposits by banks - - - 51,846 - 51,846
Customer accounts - - - 1,254,688 - 1,254,688
Derivatives 14,069 - - - - 14,069
Other liabilities - - - - 6,211 6,211
14,069 - - 1,306,534 6,211 1,326,814
Equity 82,232
1,409,046
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7. Financial Instruments {continued)

The following tables show the financial instruments carried at fair value by valuation method:

2016
Level 1 (3 Level 2 Level 3 (3 Total
£000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Assets
Derivatives - 12,153 - 12,153
Total - 12,153 - 12,153
Liabllities
Derivalives - 18,784 - 18,784
Total - 18,784 - 18,784
2015
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£'000 £'000 £000 £000
Assets
Derivatives - 9,598 - 9,598
Total - 9,598 - 9,598
Liabilities
Derivatives - 14,069 - 14,069
Total - 14,069 - 14,069

During the year, directors have reassessed the categorisation of forwards and as a result, considered them to be in Level
2 as their fair value is considered to be based on cbservable inputs. Comparative information has been revised to include
forwards within level 2, whereas previously they had been classified within level 1, in order to present information on a
comparable basis.

(1)  Valued using unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical financial instruments
(2)  Valued using techniques based significantly on observable market data. Instruments in this category are valued using:
a) quoled prices for similar instruments or identical instruments in markeis which are not consldered to be active: or
b} valuation techniques where all the inpuls that have a significant effect on the valuation are directly or Indirectly based on observable market
data.
(3)  Instruments in this category have been valued using a valuation technique where al least one input (which could have a significant effect on the

Instrument’s valuation) is not based on observable markel data. Where inputs can be observed from market data without undue cost and effort, the
observed inputis used. Otherwise, the Company determines a reasonable leve! for the input.
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7. Financial Instruments (continued)

The following table shows the carrying values and the fair values of financial instruments on the balance sheet carried at
amortised cost: all assets and liabilities carried al amortised cost on the balance sheet fall within level 2 of the valuation
methodologies, as set out on page 28.

2016 2016 2015 2015
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
value value value value
£000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Financial assets
Cash and balances at central banks 17,625 17,625 17.674 17,674

Loans and advances to banks
Loans and receivables 849,112 849,112 793,111 793,111

Loans and advances to customers
Loans and receivables 583,574 493,418 578,535 552,577

Financial liabilities
Deposits by banks 36,600 36,600 51,846 51,846

Customer accounts 1,340,675 1,340,675 1,254,688 1,254,688

Differences between the carrying value and the fair value of loans and receivables above relale specifically to certain
advances that are at fixed interest rates and fixed maturity dates. There is no intention to break any of these advances
prior to maturity and the difference between carrying value and fair value is never expected to be realised.

The fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing
parties in an arm’s length transaction. Quoted market values are used where available; otherwise, fair values have been
estimated based on discounted expected future cash flows and other valuation techniques. These techniques involve
uncertainties and require assumptions and judgements covering prepayments, cradit risk and discount rates.

Changes in these assumplions would significantly affect estimated fair values. The fair values reported would not
necessarily be realised in an immediate sale or settlement. As a wide range of valuation techniques are available, it may
be inappropriate to compare the Company’s fair value information to independent markets or other financial institutions'
fair values.

The assumplions and methodologies underlying the calculation of fair values of financial instruments at the balance sheet
date are set out below:

The fair value of financial instruments that are of short maturity (3 months or less) approximate their carrying value. This
applies mainly to cash and balances at central banks, items in the course of collection from other banks, setilement
balances, items in the course of transmission to other banks and demand deposits.

The Company uses a number of methodologies to determine the fair values of financial instruments for which observable
prices in aclive markels for identical instruments are not available. These techniques include: relative value
methodologies based on observable prices for similar instruments; present value approaches where future cash flows
from the asset or liability are estimated and then discounted using a risk-adjusted interest rate; option pricing models
(such as Black-Scholes or binomial option pricing models) and simulation models such as Monte-Carlo.

The principal inputs to these valualion techniques are listed below. Values between and beyond available data points are
obtained by inlerpolation and extrapolation. When utilising valuation techniques, the fair value can be significantly
affected by the choice of valuation model and by underlying assumptions concerning factors such as the amounts and
timing of cash flows, discount rates and credit risk:-

» Bond prices - quoled prices are generally available for government bonds, certain corporate securities and some
mortgage-relaled products.

»  Credit spreads - where available, these are derived from prices of credit default swaps or other credit based
instruments, such as debt securities. For others, credit spreads are obtained from pricing services.

» Interest rales - these are principally benchmark interest rates such as the London Inter-Bank Offered Rate (LIBOR)
and quoted interest rates in the swap, bond and futures markets.

»  Foreign currency exchange rates - there are observable markets both for spot and forward contracts and futures in
the world's major currencies.
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7. Financial Instruments (continued)

Loans and advances to banks and customers

Fair value is estimaled by grouping loans into homogeneous portfolios and applying a discount rate to the cash flows. The
discount rale is based on the market rate applicable at the balance sheet date for a simitar portfolio with similar maturity
and credit risk characteristics.

Deposits by banks and customer accounts
The fair values of deposils are estimated using discounted cash flow valuation techniques.

Remaining maturity
The following shows the residual maturity of financial instruments based on contractual date of maturity,

Less than More than

12 months 12 months Total
2016 £'000 £'000 £'000
Assets
Cash and balances at central banks 17,625 - 17,625
l.oans and advances to banks 828,042 21,070 849,112
Loans and advances to customers 29,888 553,686 583,574
Derivatives 2,806 9,347 12,153
Liabilities
Deposits by banks 36,600 - 36,600
Customer accounts 1,313,687 26,988 1,340,675
Derivatives 18,142 642 18,784

Less than More than
12 months 12 months Total

2015 £'000 £'000 £'000
Assets
Cash and balances at central bank 17,674 - 17,674
Loans and advances to banks 765,111 28,000 793,111
Loans and advances to customers 27,786 548,749 576,535
Derivatives 8,619 979 9,598
Liabilities
Deposits by banks 51,846 - 51,846
Customer accounts 1,251,676 3,012 1,254,688
Derivatives 13,090 979 14,069
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8. Financial assets - impairments

The following table shows analysis of impaired financial assets:

2016 2015

Net book Net book
Cost Provision value Cost Provision value

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Impaired financial assets
Loans and advances to customers 2,314 (728) 1,586 2512 (774) 1,738

The above provision is with respect lo the impaired book and excludes the latent provision.

The fair value of security held against these loans and advances to customers amounted to £1,377k (2015: £1,836k).

The following tables show the movement in the provision for impairment losses for loans and advances:

Latent Specific Total
£000 £'000 £'000
At 1 January 2016 202 774 976
Amounts writlen off - (175) {175)
Charge to the income statement 97 75 172
Recoveries of amounts previously written off - 65 65
Unwind of discount - (11} {11)
At 31 December 2016 299 728 1,027
Latent Specific Total
£'000 £'000 £'000
At 1 January 2015 213 638 as1
Amounts written off - (116) {116)
Charge to the income statement {11) 162 151
Recoveries of amounts previously writien off - 90 90
Unwind of discount - - -
At 31 December 2015 202 774 976
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8. Financial assets - impairments (continued)

The following tables show an analysis of past due but not impaired:

Past due
Past due Past due Past due more than
1-29 days  30-59days 60-89 days 90 days Total
2016 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Loans and advances {o customers 1,804 379 544 1,688 4,415
2015
Loans and advances to customers 3,915 1,674 542 1,990 8,121
The majority of the past due loans are fully secured.
9. Investment in subsidiary
2016 2015
£ £
At 1 January and 31 December 100 100

The Company owns 100% of the share capital of Isle of Man Bank (Nominees) Limited, a nominee company incorporated

and registered in the Isle of Man.

10. Property, plant and equipment

Computers

Freehold and other

Premises equipment Total
2016 £'000 £'000 £'000
Cost:
At 1 January 2016 6,327 179 6,506
Additions - - -
Disposals {465) - (465)
At 31 December 2016 5,862 179 6,041
Accumulated depreciation and amortisation:
At 1 January 2016 2,787 179 2,966
Disposals (107) - (107)
Depreciation charge for the year 63 1 64
Currency translations and other adjustmentis 3 (8) (5)
At 31 December 2016 2,746 172 2,918
Net book value at 31 December 2016 3,116 7 3,123

There are no differences in fair value of premises to the carrying value in current and prior years.
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10. Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Computers and

Freehold other

Premises equipment Totat
2015 £'000 £'000 £'000
Cost;
At 1 January 2015 6,327 179 6,506
Additions - - -
Disposals - - -
At 31 December 2015 6,327 179 6,506
Accumulated depreciation and amortisation:
At 1 January 2015 2,722 172 2,894
Depreciation charge for the year 65 7 72
Disposals - - -
At 31 December 2015 2,787 179 2,966
Net book value at 31 December 2015 3,540 - 3,540

There are no differences in fair value of premises to the carrying value in current and prior years.

11. Derivatives

Companies in the Group enter into various derivatives to manage year end foreign exchange and interest rate risks.

Derivatives include swaps and forwards. They may be traded over-the-counter (OTC).

The Company enters into fair value hedges. Fair value hedges principally involve interest rate swaps hedging the inlerest

rale risk in recognised financial assets and financial liabilities.

Included in the table below are derivatives entered into during the normal course of business with customers and other

RBS companies:

2016 2015
Notional Notional
amounts Assets Liabilities amounis Assefs Liabilities
£'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000

Exchange rate contracts
Spots and forwards - RBS
entities 127,564 3,400 2,027 141,189 694 -
Spots and forwards - third
party 15,153 48 1,410 22,122 955 7
Interest rate swaps
RBS 95,024 8,705 15,347 141,189 7.949 14,062

237,741 12,153 18,784 304,500 9,508 14,069
Included in the abave are fair value hedge accounting derivatives as follows:
Interest rate swaps 12,822 - 3,718 13,477 - 2,692

Gains and losses that have gone through the income statement in relation to interest rate swaps and fair value hedged

items are as follows:

2016 2015
£'000 £'000
Gains recognised on the hedge accounting interest rate
swap 1,816 1,285
Losses recognised on the ilem being hedged (1,975) (1,652)
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12. Accruals, deferred income and other liabilities

2016 2015
£'000 £'000
Accruals and deferred income 6,848 2,625
Other liabilities 1,270 1,700
8,118 4,325
Provisions of £1,270k (2015: £1,255k) are included in other liabilities.
The following amounts are included within provisions:
Customer redres“s, Other Total
£000 £'000 £'000
At 1 January 2015 160 917 1,077
Charged to the income statement 475 260 735
Utilised in year (233) {324) (557)
At 1 January 2016 402 853 1,255
Charged to the income statement 617 620 1,237
Released during the year - {300) (300)
Utilised in year {402) {520) (922)
At 31 Dacember 2016 617 653 1,270

{1) Customer redrass provision

The Company has pravided for customer redress in relation to payment protection insurance. interest rate hedging products and oiher retall products.

13. Deferred taxation

Accelerated

capital

Pension allowances Provisions Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

At 1 January 2015 (340) (2} - (342)
Credit/{charge) to income statement (34) 2 - (32)
Charge to other comprehensive income (278) - - (278)
At 1 January 2016 (652) - - {652)
Credit/{charge) to income statement (441) - - {441)
Charge to other comprehensive income 179 - - 179
At 31 December 2016 (914) - - {914)

Last year the Company adopted IFRIC 14 “Limit On Defined Benefit Asset” and this caused a decrease in pension
surplus recognised in the financial statements. The change in the accounting standard has been applied retrospectively
and the pension asset and the deferred tax liability have been restated in 2013 and 2014 financial statements. The
deferred tax liability balance was decreased by £797K in 2013 and £850k in 2014 as result of the changes in IFRIC 14,
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14. Called up share capital
Allotted, calted up and fully

paid Authorised
31 December 31 December
2016 2015 2016 2015
£'000 £'000 £'000 £000
Equity shares:
Ordinary shares of £1 7,501 7.501 15,000 15,000
Preference shares of £1 - - 5 5
Total share capital 7.501 7.501 15,005 15,005
Allotted, called up and fully
paid Authorised
31 December 31 December
2016 2015 2016 2015
Number of shares £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Equity shares:
Ordinary shares of £1 7,501 7,501 15,000 15,000
Preference shares of £1 - - 5 5
7,501 7,501 15,005 15,005
15. Leases

The company provides assel finance to its customers through acting as a lessor. It purchases plant and equipment,
renting them to customers under lease agreements that, depending on their terms, qualify as either operating or finance
leases.

Finance leases are set out in the table below. Amounts receivable under non-
cancellable leases:

Finance lease contracts

2016 2015
Present Present
Year in which Gross value Present Gross value Present
receipt will occur: amounts adjustments  value amounits adjusiments  value
£'000 £'000  £9000 £'000 £'000 _ £'000
Within 1 year 3,404 {(197) 3,207 3,404 (197) 3,207
After 1 year but within 5 years 13,614 (2,545) 11,069 13,614 (2,545) 11,069
After 5 years 23,825 (9,874) 13,951 27,229 (11.723) 15,506

40,843 (12,616) 28,227 44,247 {14,465) 29,782
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15. Leases {continued)

Operating leases are set out in the table below. Minimum amounts payable under non-cancellable leases:

2016
After 1 year
but within §

Year in which payment will occur: Within 1 year years  After 5 years Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Operating lease obligations:

Premises 1,138 2,966 2,955 7,059

2015
After 1 year
but within 5

Year in which payment will oceur: Within 1 year years After 5 years Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £000

Operating lease obligations:

Premises 1,650 4,646 7,835 14,131
2016 2015
£'000 £000

Amounts recognised as income and expense

Operating |lease payables — minimum payments 1,138 1,650

Residual value exposures

There are no unguaranteed residual values included in the carrying value of finance lease receivables.

16. Risk management

The maijor risks associated with |sle of Man Bank Limited are market, liquidity, credit, regulatory and operational risk. The
Company has established a comprehensive framework for managing these risks which is continually evolving as the
Company's business activities change in response io market, credit, product and other developments. The Company is a

wholly owned subsidiary of The Royal Bank of Scotland International (Holdings) Limited.

As discussed in the Report of the Directors, the authority for day-to-day risk management has been delegated to the
Investment Risk Commitiee (*IRC"}, the Offshore Asset and Liability Committee (*ALCQ"), the Executive Commitiee
Offshore (*“ExCo") and the Offshore Audit Committee ("OAC").
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16. Risk management (continued)

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in inlerest rates, foreign exchange rates, prices, volatilities and correlations may have
an adverse financial impact on the Company's financial condition or results.

The Company's management of its exposure to market risk recognises a fundamental distinction between the core (retail)
lending and deposils and the Company's foreign exchange and money market (wholesale) activities.

Market risk includes:

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk arises as a result of timing differences on the re-pricing of assets and liabilities, unexpected changes in
the slope and shape of the yield curves and changes in the comelation of interest rates between different financial
instruments. In addition to interest rate risk positions managed within controlled risk limits by the Treasury unit, structural
interest rale risk arises in the consclidated balance sheet as a result of fixed rate, variable rate and non-interest bearing
assefs and liabilities. Exposure to interest rate movements arises when there is a2 mis-maich between interest rate
sensitive assets and liabilities. The Company closely monitors interest rate movements, the interest rate and re-pricing
malurity structure of its interest bearing assets and liabilities and the level of non-interest bearing assets and liabilities. In
order to reduce the effect of fluctuating interest rates on net interest income, the compasition of non-trading interest rate
risk is assessed and funding positions or other derivalive transactions are hedged with RBS.

Currency risk

All transactional {or non-struclural) currency exposure risk is managed by the Treasury unit and there remains a small
immaterial open position which is measured on a daily basis within set limits. The principal non-sterling currencies in
which the Company has transactional currency exposure are US Dollar and the Euro.

Value-at-Risk ("VaR")

The Company manages market risk through VaR limits as well as stress tesling, position and sensitivity limits, VaR is a
technique that produces estimates of the potential negative change in the market value of a portfolio over a specified time
horizon at a given confidence level. The table below sets out the VaR for the Company, which assumes a 99% confidence
level and a one-day lime horizon.

31 December 2016 Maximum Minimum Average

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Value-at-Risk 4 22 1 3
31 December 2015 Maximum Minimum Average

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Value-at-Risk 2 7 1 4

Historical data may not provide the best estimate of the joint distribution of risk factor changes in the future and may fail to
capture the risk of possible extreme adverse market movements which have not occurred in the historical window used in
the calculations. These limitations are listed below:

+ VaR using a one-day time harizon does not fully capture the market risk of positions that cannot be liquidated or
hedged within one day.
VaR using a 99% confidence level does not reflect the extent of potential losses beyond that percentile.
The Company largely computes the VaR of the trading portfolios at the close of business and positions may change
substantially during the course of the trading day. Controls are in place to limit the Company's intra-day exposure
such as the calculation of VaR for selected portfolios.

These limitations and the nature of the VaR measure mean that the Company cannot guarantee that losses will not

exceed the VaR amounts indicaled or that losses in excess of the VaR amounts will not occur more frequently than once
in 20 business days.
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16. Risk management (continued}

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk thal the Company does not have sufficient financial resources to meet its commitments when they
fall due, or can secure them only at excessive cost. The Company performs daily liquidity monitoring to ensure
compliance with limits set by the regulators in the jurisdiction within which it operates. Quarerly reports are made to
ALCO and the Board covering Sterling and currency liquidity.

The ultimate parent company, The Royal Bank of Scotland Group plc, is required by the Financial Conduct Authority to
meet its Sterling obligations without recourse to the wholesale money market for a period of at least five business days.
RBS manages its capital and liquidity, including drawing on support provided by the UK government and central banks in
response fo market conditions, in a responsible manner that continues to provide sufficient capital resources and liquidity
for the Group to meet its obligations as they fall due,

The Company maintains daily liquidity reporting of positions to RBS.

The liquidity schedule is extracted from the prudential returns submitted to the regulators in Jersey and Isle of Man.

0-3 3-12 1-3 3-5 5-20
months months years years years
2016 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Assets by contractual maturity
Cash and balances 17,625 - - - -
Loans and advances to banks 821,018 7,024 21,070 - -
Total maturing assets 838,643 7,024 21,070 - -
Loans and advances to customers 19,540 10,348 37,839 39,972 475,875
Total assets 858,183 17,372 58,909 39,972 475,875
Liabilities by contractual maturity
Deposits by banks 27,654 8,945 - - -
Total maturing liabilities 27,654 8,945 - - -
Custorner accounts 1,291,309 19,691 27,539 - -
Total liabilities 1,318,963 28,636 27,539 - -
Maturity gap (460,780) (11,264) 31,370 39,972 475,875
Cumulative maturity gap (460,780) (472,044) (440,674) (400,702) 75,173
Guarantees and commitments notional amount
Guarantees ‘" {1,137)
Commitments ! {95,217) - - - -
{96,354) - - - -
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16. Risk management {continued)

0-3 3-12 1-3 3-5 5-20
months months years years years
2015 £000 £'000 £000 £000 £000
Assets by contractual maturity
Cash and balances 17,674 - - - -
Loans and advances to banks 740,302 21,000 21,000 7,000 2,285
Total maturing assets 757,976 21,000 21,000 7,000 2,285
Loans and advances to customers 27,072 6,845 31,989 37,123 470,052
Total assets 785,048 27,845 52,989 44,123 472,337
Liabilities by contractual maturity
Deposits by banks 51,000 - - - -
Total maturing liabilities 51,000 - - - -
Customer accounts 1,203,082 31,102 20,358 - 14,062
Total liabilities 1,254,082 31,102 20,358 - 14,062
Maturity gap (469,034) (3.257) 32,601 44,123 458,275
Cumulative maturity gap (469,034) (472,291)  {439,660) (395,537} 62,738
Guarantees and commitments notional amount
Guarantees {1,130)
Commilments ¥ (97,158) - - - -
(98,288) - - - -

Note;

"' The Company is only called upon to salisfy a guarantee when the guaranteed party fails to meet ils obligations. The Company expects
most guarantees it provides to expire unused.

' The Company has given commitments to provide funds to customers under undrawn formal facilities, credit lines and other
commitments to lend subject to certain condilions being met by the counterparty. The Company does not expect all facilities to be drawn,
and some may lapse before drawdown.

Financial assets have been reflected in the time band of the latest date on which they could be repaid unless earlier
repayment can be demanded by the reporting entity; financial liabilities are included at the earliest date on which the
counterparty can require repayment regardless of whether or not such early repayment results in a penalty.

If the repayment of a financial asset or liability is triggered by, or is subject to, specific crileria such as market price
burdles being reached, the asset is included in the latest date on which it can repay regardless of early repayment
whereas the liability is included at the earliest possible date that the conditions could be fulfilled without considering the
probability of the conditions being met. For example, if a structured note is automatically prepaid when an equity index
exceeds a certain level, the cash outflow will be included in the less than three months period whatever the level of the
index at the year end. As the repayment of assets and liabilities are linked, the repayment of assets in securitisations are
shown on the earliest date that the asset can be prepaid as this is the basis used for liabilities.

The principal amounts of financial assets and liabilities that are repayable after 20 years ar where the counterparty has no
right to repayment of the principal are excluded from the table as are interest payments after 20 years.
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16. Risk management (continued)

Credit risk (including counterparty risk)

Credit risk is the risk that the Company will incur losses owing to the failure of customers to meet their financial
obligations to the Company. The most important step in managing this risk is the initial decision whether or not lo extend
credit. The Company's strong credit culture extends to the management of resultant exposures via individual counterparty
and concentration limits and the monitoring of counterparty credit worthiness as described below.

The Company has exposure to RBS entities by making placements and advances to those counterparties. The Board of
Directors reviews the placement of deposits to RBS. RBS is majority owned by the UK Government and draws on support
provided by central banks where required in order to meet its commitments including those to the Group.

The day-to-day management of credit risk is devolved to a specialist credit function, which perform regular appraisals of
counterparty credit quality through the analysis of qualitative and quantitative information. Credit authority is based on
defined limits. If the Company requires collateral, this may be cash, or more commonly, security over a customer's assets.

Under IAS 39, provisions are assessed by the Company under the following two categories:

Individually assessed provisions

Individually assessed provisions are the provisions required for individually significant impaired assets which are
assessed on a case-by-case basis, taking into account the financial condition of the counterparty and any guarantor. This
incorporates an estimate of the discounted value of any recoveries and realisation of security or collateral. The asset
continues to be assessed on an individual basis until it is repaid in full or written off.

Latent loss provisions

Latent loss provisions are the provisions held against the estimated impairment in the performing portfolio, which has yet
to be identified and reported as at the year end date. To assess the latent loss within the portfolio, the Company has
developed methodologies to estimate the time that an asset can remain impaired within a performing portfolio before it is
identified and reported as such.

A management review has shown that the majority of the Company's lending book is covered in excess of 100% of the
carrying value by the fair value of security. The fair values of security are based on the most recent open market valuation
of each item of security and an ongeing review process is in place to ensure that all security remains valid. Unsecured
Personal Lending totalled £8,434k as at 31 December 2016 (2015: £9,914k) — all unsecured lending is made subsequent
to checking customer credit ratings and banking histories.

Impaired financial assets relating to credit risk are analysed in note 8. There are no other net significant exposures to
credit risk.

Maximum credit risk exposure and significant concentrations of credit risk are illustrated in the table below:

Gross loans

and advances Exposure post
to banks and Nettin netting and
customers Derivatives Total and offset ! offset
2016 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

UK and Crown Dependencies
Central and local government 214,132 - 214,132 (60,168) 153,964
Manufacturing 1,798 - 1,798 - 1,798
Construction 4,894 - 4,894 - 4,894
Finance 849,261 12,153 861,414 - 861,414
Service industries and business 3,857 - 3,857 - 3,857
Agriculture, farestry and fishing 6,600 - 6,600 - 6,600
Property 26,424 - 26,424 - 26,424
Individuals 8,513 - 8,513 - 8,513
Home mortgages 332,893 - 332,893 - 332,893
Finance leases and instalment credit 28,227 - 28,227 - 28,227
Other 17,281 - 17,281 - 17,281
Total UK and Crown Dependencies 1,493,880 12,153 1,506,033 (60,168) 1,445,865
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16. Risk management (continued)

Gross loans
and advances Exposure
to banks and Nettinﬂ post netting
customers Derivatives Total  and offset ! and offset
2015 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000
UK and Crown Dependencies
Central and local government 220,857 - 220,857 (58,394) 162,463
Manufacturing 2,380 - 2,380 - 2,380
Construction 5,061 - 5,061 - 5,061
Finance 793,208 9,598 802,806 - 802,806
Service industries and business 3,629 - 3,629 - 3,629
Agriculture, forestry and fishing 5,467 - 5,467 - 5,467
Property 30,309 - 30,309 - 30,309
Individuals 36,975 36,975 - 36,975
Home mortgages 288,970 - 288,970 - 288,970
Finance leases and instalment credit 29,781 - 29,781 - 29,781
Other 12,379 - 12,379 - 12,379
Total UK and Crown Dependencies 1,429,016 9,598 1,438,614 (58,394) 1,380,220

() This column shows the amount by which the Company's credit risk exposures is reduced through arrangements, such as master netiing
agreements, which give the Company a legal right to set-off the financial asset againsi a financial liability due to the same counterparty. In
addition, the Company holds collateral in respect of individual loans and advances to banks and customers, This collateral includes
maorigages over property (bolh personal and commercial); charges over business assels such as plant, inventories and trade receivables;
and guarantees of lending from parties other than the borrower. The Company obtains coliateral in the form of securities in reverse
repurchase agreements. Cash and securities are received as collateral in respect of derivative transactions.

The balances included above have been offset with liabilities of £60,168k {2015: £58,394k) in accordance with the offsetting
rules of IAS 32.

In accordance with |IAS 32, balances with a counterparly are not offset unless there is a legally enforceable right to offset and
there is an intention to setlle net, or to realise the asset and settle the liability at the same time.
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16. Risk management {continued)

Credit risk asset quality

The asset quality analysis presented below is based on the Company’s intemal asset quality ratings which have ranges
for the probability of default, as set out below. Customers are assigned credit ratings, based on various credit rating
models that reflect the key drivers of default for the customer type. All credit grades across the Company map to both an
asset quality scale, used for external financial reporting, and a master grading scale for wholesale exposures used for

internal management reporting across portfolios.

The table that follows details the relationship between asset quality {AQ) bands and external ratings published by
Standard & Poor's (S&P), for illustrative purposes only. This relationship is established by observing S&P's default study
stalistics, notably the one year default rates for each S8P rating grade. A degree of judgement is required to relate the
probability of default associated with master grading scale to these default rales given that, for example the S&P
published default rales do not increase uniformly by grade and historical default rate is nil for the highest rating

categories.

The table below shows credit risk assets by asset quality (AQ) band:

Asset Quality Grade Minimum
%

AN 0.000
AQ2 0.034
AQ3 0.048
AQ4 0.085
AQS 0.381
AQB 1.076
AQ7 2.153
AQ8 6.089
AQ9 17.222
AQ10 100.000

Maximum

%
0.034
0.048
0.095
0.381
1.076
2.153
6.089

17.222
100.000
100.000

Indicative S&P

rating
AAA o AA
AA-
At+to A

BBB+ to BBB-

BB+ to BB
BB-to B+
B+toB

B- to CCC+

CCCtoC
D

The following table provides an analysis of the credit quality of third party financial assets by probability of default:

Cash and

balances at Loansand Loans and

central advances advances to
banks to banks customers Derivatives Commitments
2016 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000
AQ1 17,625 849,112 183,849 12,153 32,912
AQ 2 - - - - -
AQ3 - - - - 500
AQ 4 - - 5,854 - 2,341
AQ5 - - 16,312 - 6,065
AQ 6 - - 351,679 - 49,866
AQ7 - - 12,238 - 2,828
AQ8 - - 5,537 - 645
AQ9 - - 3 - 60
AQ 10 - - 2,400 5 5
Accruing past due - - 4,415 - -
Impaired loans - - 2,314 - -
Less impairment provision - - {1,027) - -
Total 17,625 849,112 583,574 12,153 95,217
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16. Risk management (continued)

Credit risk asset quality {(continued)

Cashand Loansand Loansand

balances at advances advances to

central banks tobanks customers ODerivatives Commitments
2015 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000
ACH1 17,674 793,111 192,423 9,598 38,027
A2 - - - -
AQ3 - - - - -
AQ 4 - - 9,015 - 2,810
AQ S5 - - 15,225 - 7,505
AC6 - - 331,390 - 45,120
AQ7 - - 9,231 - 3,059
AQB - - 4,210 - 465
AQ9 - - 1,660 - 172
AQ 10 - - 3,724 - -
Accruing past due - - 8,121 - -
Impaired loans - - 2,512 - -
Less impairment provision - - (976) - -
Total 17,674 793,111 576,535 9,598 97,158

Regulatory risk

The Company manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Company will be able to continue as a going concem
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Company consists of equity atiributable to equity holders of the Company, comprising issued
capital, reserves and retained earnings as disclosed in the Statement of Changes in Equity.

The Company has capital adequacy requirements imposed by the Isle of Man - Financial Services Authority. The
Company is required to report a risk asset ratio to the regulator on a periodic basis. The ratio is calculated as being the
percentage of capital to assets, based on the regulators' definitions of capital and assets. This risk asset ratio is required
at all times to be above a benchmark percentage provided by the regulator. The Company has been in compliance with
capital adequacy requirements in respect of the years ending 31 December 2016 and 2015. The minimum risk to asset
ratio in Isle of Man is 10%.

As at 31 December 2016 there were 10 (2015: 9) credit exposures (including guarantees) with a total value of £236,729k
(2015:; £63,818k) which individually exceed 10% of the adjusted capital base. The tolal value of credit exposures is
£278,512k (2015: £255,812k).

ALCO reviews the capital structure of the Company on a quarterly basis. As part of this review, the committee considers
the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital, along with considering compliance of regulatory
requirements. Based on recommendations of the commitiee, the Company will balance its overall capital structure
through the payment of dividends, new share issues and share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt or the
redemption of existing debt.

Operational risk
Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed processes, people, systems or from exlernal events.

The Company’s business units manage this risk through appropriate risk controls and loss mitigation actions. These
actions include a balance of policies, procedures, internal controls and business continuity arrangements.
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16. Risk management (continued)

Regulatory risk {continued)

Pension risk

Pension risk is the risk 1o the Company arising from its contractual or other liabilities to, or with respect fo, its pension
schemes, whether established for its employees, for those of a related company or otherwise.

The Company is exposed to risk from its defined benefit pension schemes to the extent that the assets of the schemes do
not fully match the timing and amount of the schemes’ liabilities. Pension scheme liabilities vary with changes to long-
term interest rates, inflation, pensionable salaries and the longevity of scheme members as well as changes in legislation.
Ullimate responsibility for the Company's pension schemes is separate from the Company's management. The Company
is exposed to the risk that the marketl value of the schemes' assets, together with future returns and any additional future
contributions could be considered insufficient to meet the liabilities as they fall due. In such circumstances, the Company
could be obliged, or may choose, to make additional contributions 1o the schemes or be required to hold additional capital
to mitigate such risk.

Risk appetite and investment policy are agreed by the trustees with quantitative and qualitative input from the scheme
actuaries and investment advisers. The trustees also consult with the Company to obtain its view on the appropriate level
of risk within the pension funds. The Company independently monitors risk within its pension funds as part of the intemal
Capital Adequacy Assessment Process. The RBS Pension Committee (PC), acling as a sub-commitiee of the RBS Asset
and Liability Commitiee (ALCO), formulates the RBS view of pension risk.

The trustee boards are solely responsible for the investment of the schemes’ assets which are held separately frem the
assets of the Company. The Company and the trustee boards discuss and agree on the investment principles and the
funding plan. The schemes are invested in diversified portfolios of equity, government and corporate fixed-interest and
index-linked bonds.

Risk has been mitigated in the schemes in a number of ways as follows:

¢ In 2006, the schemes were closed to new employees.

«  From April 2010, the Company confirmed that it was making changes to the schemes by limiting the amount by
which pensionable salary increases (the "pensionable salary cap™) to 2% per annum {or CPI inflation, if lower).

« In October 2012, the Company confirmed that it was offering employees in the schemes the choice between an
increase of 5% of salaries to the charge made for scheme membership and an increase in Normal Pension Age
from 60 to 65 in respect of service from October 2012 with no additional charge.

A funding valuation of the IOMBPF at 31 December 2012 was finalised in 2015, resulting in deficit contributions of

£3.065m p.a. payable from 2016 to 2023 inclusive. A further funding valuation of the IOMBPF is due as at 31 December
2015 and is expected to be finalised during 2017.
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17. Contingent liabilities and commitments

The amounts shown in the table below are intended only to provide an indication of the volume of business oulstanding at
31 December 2016. Although the Company is exposed fo credit risk in the event of non-performance of the obligations

undertaken by customers, the amounts shown do not, and are not intended to, provide any indication of the Company’s
expectation of future losses.

2016 2015

£'000 £000
Contingent liabilities:
Guarantees 1,137 1,130
Other contingent liabilities 186 249
Tota! contingent liabilities 1,323 1,379
Commitments:
Undrawn formal standby facilities, credit lines and
other commitments to lend 95,217 97,158

Banking commilments and contingent obligations, which have been entered into on behalf of customers and for which
there are corresponding obligations from customers, are not included in assets and liabilities. The Company’s maximum
exposure to credit loss, in the event of non-performance by the other party and where all counterclaims, collateral or
security proves valueless, is represented by the contractual nominal amount of these instruments included in the table.
These commitments and contingent obligations are subject to the Company's normal credit approval processes and any
potential loss is taken into account in assessing provisions for bad and doubtful debts in accordance with the Company's
provisioning policy.

Contingent liabilities

These include standby letters of credit, supporting customer debt issues, contingent liabilities relating to customer trading
activities such as those arising from performance and cusloms bonds, warranties and indemnities and obligations to The
Royal Bank of Scotiand plc.

Additional contingent liabilities arise in the normal course of the Company's business. It is not anticipated that any
matarial loss will arise from these transactions.

Commitments

Commitments to lend — under a loan commitment the Company agrees o make funds available to a customer in the
future. Loan commitments, which are usually for a specified term may be unconditionally cancellable or may persist,
provided all conditions in the loan facility are satisfied or waived. Commitments to lend include commercial standby
facilities and credit lines, liquidity facilities to commercial paper conduits and unutilised overdraft facilities.

Commitments under non-cancellable operating leases are detailed in note 15.

Litigation

The Company is involved in litigation involving claims by and against it which arise in the ordinary course of business.
The directors of the Company, after reviewing the claims pending and threatened against the Company, and taking into

account the advice of the relevant legal advisers, are satisfied that the outcome of these claims are unlikely to have a
material adverse effect on the net assets of the Company.
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18. Net cash inflow from operating activities

2016 2015

£000 £'000
Operating profit 9,444 13,436
Pension charge for defined benefit schemes 514 414
Cash contribution to defined benefit schemes (4,672) (527)
Gain on sale of assels (324) -
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 64 72
Loan impairment provision net of recoverias (3) 35
Foreign exchange {88) {4)
Other {55]) {2}
Net cash inflows from trading activities 4,880 13,424
(Increase)decrease in loans and advances to banks and customers {60,427) 108,337
Increase in derivatives (2,555) {278)
{Increase)/decrease in prepayments, accrued income and other assels {4,113) 176
Changes in operating assets (67,095} 108,235
Increasef{decrease) in deposits by banks and customers 70,741 (80,900)
Increase/{decrease) in derivalives 4,715 (444)
Increase/(decrease) in accruals, deferred income and other liabilities 3,793 (19,381)
Increasef{decrease) in deferred tax s (278)
Changes in operating liabilities 79,249 (101,003)
Taxes paid (1,239) (421)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 15,795 20,235
19. Analysis of cash and cash equivalents

2016 2015

£'000 £'000
At 1 January
Cash and balances at central banks 18,795 18,555
Net cash flow A77 235
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 83 5
At 31 December 19,355 18,795
Comprising:
Cash and balances at central banks 17,625 17,674
Loans and advances to banks 1,730 1,121

19,355 18,795

20. Other cash flow information

2016 2015

£'000 £'000
Interest received 23,875 31,137
Interest paid (8,813) (9,468)

15,062 21,669
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21. Related parties

The Company's immediate parent company is The Royal Bank of Scotland International {(Holdings) Limited.

The Company's ultimate holding company, and the parent of the largest group into which the Company is consolidated
into is The Royal Bank of Scotland Group plc.

UK Government
The UK Government through HM Treasury is the ultimate controlling party of The Royal Bank of Scotland Group ple. Its

shareholding is managed by UK Financial Investments Limited, a company it wholly-owns and as a result, the UK
Government and UK Government controlled bodies are related parties of the Company.

{a) Directors and key managers

For the purposes of IAS 24 'Related Party Disclosure’, key management comprise the directors of the Company. The
following amounts are attributable, in aggregate, to key management:

2016 2015
£'000 £000
Customers accounts 5 4

Key management have banking relationships with Group entities which are entered into in the normal course of business
and on substantially the same terms, including interest rates and security, as for comparable transactions with other
persons of a simitar standing or, where applicable, with other employees. These transactions did not involve more than
the normal risk of repayment or present other unfavourable features.

{b) Related party transactions

2016 2015
£'000 £'000
Assets
Loans and advances to banks:
RBS entities 846,519 791,068
RBS International entities - 921
846,519 791,989
Liabilities
Deposits by banks:
RBS entities 36,600 51,846
Income
Interest received:
RBS entities 5,387 7,531
Total income 5,387 7.531
Expenses
Interest paid:
RBS entities 5,313 5,459
Management recharge from RBS international Limited 6,044 6,689
‘Total expenses 11,357 12,148
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(c} Compensation of key management

The aggregate remuneration of directors and other members of key management during the year was as follows:

2016 2015

£000 £'000
Short term benefits 9 135
Post employment benefits - 11
Long term benefits 38 18

129 164

22. Depositors’ Compensation Scheme

The Company is required lo participate in the Isle of Man Depositors' Compensation Scheme (the "Scheme”), as set out
in the Compensation of Depositors Regulations 2008 (as amended).

On 8 Octaober 2008, the Board of Kaupthing, Singer & Friedlander {Isle of Man) Limited declared that it was unable to pay
its debts. At a hearing in the Isle of Man High Court on 27 May 2009, a winding up order was made placing the Company
into liquidation.

During the course of 2009 pursuant to Regulation 14(l){a)} of the Scheme, the Scheme Manager {(as defined by
Regulation 5(1}) gave the requisite notice to levy an amount on the Company. The initial levy was £350k and was paid in
2009 and recorded as an expense in the Income Statement.

A provision of £700k was also made in 2009 to cover the future estimated cost to the Company of levies made by the
Scheme Manager in future years. In both 2010 and 2011 the Company made further £350k annual contributions to the
Scheme which was offset against the £700k provision made in 2009. To the best of their knowledge from publicly
available information, the Directors believe that there is no further liability to the Scheme at this time.

During 2016, the Depositors’ Compensation Scheme Manager issued the Company with an interim distribution of £nil

(2015: £99,812), which has been recorded in the Income Statement on page 6. Further distributions from the Scheme
Manager are uncertain.
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